
TBM 130212 Page 1 
 

PAHRUMP TOWN BOARD MEETING 
NYE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 

2100 E WALT WILLIAMS DRIVE 
TUESDAY – 7:00 P.M. 

February 12, 2013 
Minutes 

PRESENT:        
 Town Board:          

Harley Kulkin 
Bill Dolan 
Dr. Tom Waters 
Robert Adams 
Amy Riches 

Staff: 
Bill Kohbarger, Town Manager 
Tracy Difillippo, Legal Counsel  
Michael Sullivan, Finance Director 
Matt Luis, Buildings and Grounds Manager 
Samantha Carns, Executive Assistant 
Stephanie Massimino, Business License Technician 

 
1. Call to Order, Moment of Silence, and Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
Harley Kulkin called the meeting to order. 
Tom Waters lead the moment of silence and Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Discussion and Possible Decision regarding Moving the Order of or Deleting an Agenda Item(s).  
 
Dr. Waters requested item 9 be tabled until the following Town Board meeting. 
There were no objections. 

3. Announcements  
 
Announcements were read by Dr. Waters. 
Robert Adams announced BLM would have a meeting February 23rd. 
John Pawlak announced a stand down service for all veterans at Cashman Center. He said those 
interested could contact Westcare at 751-6990 for further information.. 

4. Public/Board/Staff Comment:  
 
Public comment was heard. 
 
Bill Dolan asked if all Town Board members could receive a copy of the agendas for all Advisory 
Boards upon posting. 
Mr. Bill Kohbarger said he would email all advisory board secretaries to include Town Board 
members in their emails when posting agendas. 
 
Dr. Waters asked Mr. Kohbarger to announce the Town of Pahrump Tourism website for those 
looking to view the Tourism Video. 



TBM 130212 Page 2 
 

Mr. Kohbarger stated the Tourism Website URL was www. VisitPahrump.com and that the video was 
viewable on the upper right side of the home page. 
 
Mr. Kulkin announced a Regional Burning Man may have an event here in May and that the Town 
Board is working on getting a motorcycle rally to the Town in Spring of 2014. 
 
Amy Riches mentioned that the Town Office phone recording had old Town Board members 
information on the track. 
Mr. Kohbarger said Staff had been actively working to resolve this matter and believed it was taken 
care of. 
 
Mr. Kohbarger said he has been actively speaking with the FAA and BLM about the airport and what 
would happen if the Town Board lost the appeal for disbanding. He said the County Commissioners 
agreed to discuss whether to continue the airport themselves at their next meeting. 
 
Mr. Kulkin thanked Town Staff and Matt Luis for their hard work. 

5. Discussion and Possible Decision Consent agenda items: 
a. For Possible Action – Discussion of any item from the Consent Agenda Items that needs to be 

reviewed before a decision is made. 
b. For Possible Action – Approval of Town Vouchers. 
c. For Possible Action – Approval of Town Board meeting minutes for January 22, 2013. 
d. For Possible Action – Approval of the Resignation of Ms. Christine Grevich from the Pahrump 

Tourism and Convention Counsel. 
e. For Possible Action – Approval of Accepting Ms. Phyllis Deal to the Pahrump Tourism and 

Convention Counsel. 
f. For Possible Action – Approval of the Resignation of Mr. Joseph Goode from the Convention 

Center/Civic Center Advisory Board. 
g. For Possible Action – Approval of Accepting Mr. Leo Blundo to the Convention Center/Civic 

Center Advisory Board. 
h. For Possible Action – Approval to Transfer Ambulance Delinquent Accounts for July - December, 

2012 for Further Collection and Related Accounting Adjustments. 
i. For Possible Action – Approval to Pay 50% of the bill submitted by Mr. List, Kolesar and Leatham 

for the work completed on the Rural Nevada Economic Development BDR not to Exceed $3,802.50 
payable from the Tourism Room Tax Fund. 
 
Mr. Dolan requested to pull item 5i for further discussion. 
 
Dr. Waters asked why item 5a was on the agenda when item 2 was on the agenda 
He also asked if the PTCC approved item 5e. 
Mr. Kohbarger said a Town Board member had requested he place item 5a on the agenda, as that 
Town Board member believed it was necessary, however it would no longer be placed on the 
agenda as he had checked the NRS’s and it was not required.  
He also stated item 5e had been approved by the PTCC. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned to approve consent agenda items b-h. 
Mr. Dolan seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Mr. Dolan said he did not agree with paying the lobbyist fee for the BDR and brought up a past 
Town Board meeting from October of the previous year.   



TBM 130212 Page 3 
 

He said although the pervious Town Board had discussed forming an agreement they had never 
done so and because no contract had been drafted the Town should not pay this item. 
 
Mrs. Riches said she found the bill outrageous for the product the Town had received. 
 
Dr. Waters said the Town would benefit from the BDR.   
 
Mr. Kulkin said they should approve to pay the lobbyist fee for the BDR; he felt the Town should 
pay the bill because it would look bad on the Town to not pay. 
 
Mr. Dolan asked if the Town Board or Town Manager had seen the BDR plans. 
Mr. Kohbarger said they had not. 
Mr. Dolan said that the last Board took no action for an agreement, and that Nye County denied a 
contract. He said he wanted a contract before any money was spent. 
 

Dr. Waters said if they didn’t approve the lobbyist fee for the BDR several things could be affected by 
this. He also noted that if the BDR was successful the Town would look good if this payment was 
approved, however it would shed a negative light if the Town did not make the payment. 

 
Mr. Adams said he would be likely to approve the lobbyist fee for the BDR payment if he could 
see the BDR plans first. 
 
Mr. Dolan motioned to deny approval to pay the 50% of the bill submitted by Mr. List, 
Kolesar and Leatham for work completed on the Rural Nevada Economic Development 
BDR not to exceed $3,802.50 payable from the Tourism Room Tax Fund. 
Mrs. Riches seconded.  
Motion carried, 3-2, with Mr. Kulkin and Dr. Waters voting nay. 

 

6. Advisory Board Reports from Advisory Board Chairpersons and/or Town Board Liaisons on the 
Status of Advisory Boards.  
 
Mr. Pawlak said SiteWide would be available at the library.  
 
Dr. Waters and Mr. Kulkin both announced Advisory Boards needed volunteers. 
 
Mr. Adams said he would like to see the creation of an event calendar with the hotels and other major 
places in Town so Tourism knew when things were booked. 
He also said PLAB had seat open for a member. 
 
Dr. Waters said Phil Hyder would be at the Youth Advisory Board meeting to speak about the 
Documents of Freedom. 

7. Discussion and Possible Decision on the Future of the Pahrump Fall Festival.  
 
Mr. Kohbarger reported to the Town Board on the progression of the Fall Festival. He said 18 
volunteers representing 28 non-profits came forward to help with the 2013 Fall Festival and that he 
would soon schedule another meeting to begin the planning of the 2013 Fall Festival. 
 
Mrs. Riches said that she was glad the Town was running the Festival and that she believed non-profit 
organizations should not be charged for a booth at the event. 



TBM 130212 Page 4 
 

 
Mrs. Randi Case volunteered to manage the Arts and Crafts event of the Fall Festival.  
Mr. Rodney Camacho stated that we did not pay for any entertainment at last year's Fall Festival, and 
that this year may be different, so to take that in to account when it comes to the profit making. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned managing and organizing of the 2013 Fall Festival be left to Town Staff. 
Mr. Dolan seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

8. Discussion and Possible Decision on creating the 2013 Town Board Goals and Objectives.  
 
Mr. Dolan questioned why the other members of the Board had not submitted any goals and 
objectives for the backup. 
 
Dr. Waters stated he had intended for the current goals and objectives are carried over to this year.  
 
Mr. Kulkin pointed out that he felt that at every meeting the Town Board usually gave the Town 
Manager and Staff goals and objectives so he did not feel it necessary to submit goals and objectives. 
 
Dr. Waters commented that Mr. Dolan's goals and objectives were done well. He pointed that some of 
the goals and objectives Mr. Dolan submitted were already being done at the moment. He said he 
would prefer to see name plates at all Town Staff desk, and that he would also like Town Staff I.D. 
tags however did not wish to create discontent amongst staff as they had stated they did not wish to 
have I.D. tags. 
 
Mr. Dolan responded that some items were carried over because new Town Boards do not always 
continue old goals and objectives. He said that there were no name plates at the desks of Staff and 
that he wanted Town Staff to wear I.D. lanyards or tags. 
 
Mr. Adams said he would prefer a clip I.D tags. 
 
Mr. Kulkin and Mr. Dolan had a further discussion regarding item D of Mr. Dolan's goals and 
objectives. 
 
Dr. Waters motioned that staff to incorporate Mr. Dolans goals and objectives, eliminate the 
ones that have been completed, and to continue the currents goals and objectives on record, and 
then at the next meeting bring them back for approval. 
Mr. Dolan seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

9. Discussion and Possible Decision on the Appointment of a Pahrump Town Board member to the 
Pahrump Regional Planning Commission (RPC). 
Item tabled. 

10. Discussion and Possible Decision to Authorize an Appeal of a Final Order or Judgment in the Town's 
Lawsuit Against Nye County Challenging the County's Failure to Follow State Law in the Placement 
of a Question on the November 2012 General Election Ballot.  
 
Mr. Kohbarger requested that once the final judgment by Judge Lane was in written format, Staff 
have permission to authorize the Town Attorney to appeal the final judgment on the Town's lawsuit 
against Nye County. 



TBM 130212 Page 5 
 

  
Mrs. Riches said that she believed the Town Board was voted out because of how they treated the 
people and that she would follow the vote of the people and she ran on the note she would uphold the 
vote and voice of the people. 
She also stated that even though she supported the appeal action, she would be voting no to show 
support for the people.  
 
Dr. Waters read aloud Judge Lane’s verbal ruling and agreed that the Town should appeal the 
judgment. 
 
Mr. Dolans asked if the Town appealed, when it would be heard by the Nevada Supreme Court. 
Mrs. Tracy DiFillippo, Legal Counsel, responded she could not tell when that would be because it 
was not something which could be expedited. 
 
Mr. Kulkin said Nevada had three forms of government and that the Town was responsible for a 
limited amount of departments. 
He mentioned that Town was blamed for things the County was responsible for therefore he agreed 
the ruling should be appealed. 
 
Public comment was heard. 
   
Mrs. DiFillippo stated, should the item be passed and the disband date pass, the Town would file a 
stay with the Court and then the Court could rule to either stay the current date or not.   
 
Mr. Adams said he agreed the Town should appeal the Judge's decision. He questioned as to why the 
Town was requesting this motion before the official written ruling. 
Mrs. DiFillippo said that the Town can only appeal the written decision once posted, and that 
afterwards the Town had thirty (30) days from then to appeal. 
Mr. Korbarger stated that by voting on this item, it allowed to the lawyers to work on the appeal so 
they could submit as soon allowed. 
 
Mr. Dolan motioned to authorize an appeal of a final order or judgment in the Town's lawsuit 
against Nye County challenging the County's Failure to follow State law in the placement of a 
question on the November 2012 general election ballot.  
Dr. Waters seconded. 
Motion carried, 4-1, with Mrs. Riches voting nay. 

 

11. Discussion and Possible Decision to Request Staff to review the thirteen (13) suggestions purposed by 
Ms. Krause, decide which ones the Town can feasibly accomplish along with an approximate cost and 
then present same to the Town Board at a later date for possible implementation. 
 
Dr. Waters said he wanted Town Staff to review the thirteen (13) suggestions by Mrs. Krause and 
present those which could be implemented the to the Town Board at a later date. 
 
Mr. Dolan said he thought Mrs. Krause should have been able to go to the Town Manager without 
being on the agenda. 
 
Mrs. Riches appreciated Mrs. Krause’s effort but did not think the Town had the funding to 
implement these suggestions.  



TBM 130212 Page 6 
 

Mr. Adams said they were good ideas and that he did think some of them need to implemented. 
Mr. Kulkin said he believed all the suggestions were good ideas. 
 
Public comment was heard.  
 
Dr. Waters motioned that Town Staff review the thirteen (13) suggestions by Mrs. Krause and 
see which ones we can incorporate and to bring them back to the Town Board for a later date. 
Mr. Dolan seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

12. Discussion and Possible Decision to Adopt Resolution 2013-01, a Resolution Supporting Assembly Bill 
68 Revising the Allocation of Revenues Distributed from the Local Government Tax Distribution 
Account (CTX.).  
 
Mr. Michael Sullivan said Assembly Bill 68 revised various provisions relating to the distribution of 
certain taxes to local governments, and any excess allocated pursuant to subjection 4, 5, 6 or 7 of 
NRS 36 0.690. 
 
Mrs. Riches asked if the Town already had a deal with Nye County which cooperated with the Bill. 
Mr. Sullivan said there was not such a deal.   
 
Dr. Waters motioned to adopt resolution 2013-01, a Resolution supporting Assembly Bill 68 
revising the allocation of revenues distributed from the local government tax distribution 
account (CTX). 
Mr. Dolan seconded.   
Motion carried, 5-0. 

13. Discussion and Possible Decision to request Nye County to pave Fox Road utilizing County funds from 
Gamebird to the Town owned Fairgrounds property.  
 
Mr. Dolan motioned to request Nye County to pave Fox Road utilizing County funds from 
Gamebird Road to the Town owned Fairgrounds Property. 
Dr. Waters seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

14. Discussion and Possible Decision to request Nye County to Partner with the Town for providing water, 
power and RV/restroom sewage disposal at the fairgrounds recently completed project area.  
 
Mr. Adams said he thought there should be a working agreement between the Town and County to 
bring water and power the Fairgrounds. 
  
Mr. Adams and Mr. Kulkin both asked whether or not the Town Manager talked to Nye County about 
them putting in the water and sewer because they already had a well at the Fairgrounds.  
Mr. Kohbarger replied that they had extensive communication however nothing at had been 
specifically stated.  
 
Mr. Dolan stated William Lyon Homes had already put a sewage treatment line to the Fox area and 
may be willing to make an agreement to allow the Town to use their treatment plant to bring gray 
water to the Fairgrounds.  
 



TBM 130212 Page 7 
 

Mrs. Riches motioned to table to request Nye County to partner with the Town for providing 
water, power and RV/restroom sewage disposal at the Fairgrounds recently completed project 
area and the Mr. Kohbarger submit a report of the discussion with Nye County.  
Mr. Adams seconded. 
Motion carried, 3-2, with Dr. Waters and Mr. Dolan voting nay. 

15. Discussion and Possible Decision to Recommend to the Nye County Commissioners to Dedicate a Seat 
in the Nye County Commissioners Chambers to the Honor of Opal Jones.  
 
Ms. Carns said the reason why the Town Staff originally proposed this idea was because Opal Jones 
attended every meeting and always sat in the same seat, therefore a great way of honoring her 
memory would be to dedicate that specific seat to her. 
 
Mr. Dolan and Mr. Kulkin both agreed Mrs. Jones should honored.  
 
Dr. Waters motioned to recommend to the Nye County Commissioners to dedicate a seat in the 
Nye County Commissioners Chambers to the honor of Opal Jones.  
Mr. Adams seconded. 
Motion carried, 5-0. 

16. Future Meetings/Workshops: Date, Time and Location  
a. Town Board Retreat: March 29, 2013 @ 9:00 a.m. Mt. Crest Community Center 

 
Mr. Kulkin said he was looking forward to the Town Board Retreat. 

17. Public/Board/Staff Comment 

There were no comments. 

18. Adjournment  
 
Mr. Kulkin adjourned of meeting at 10:31 pm. 

 


